
The Board of Directors meets on the 2nd Monday each month from 6.00 to 8.00p in the 
Riverside Meeting Room at 2400 Resort Street, Baker City, Oregon.  Sign language 
interpretation for the hearing impaired is available if at least 48 hours notice is given. 
 

Baker County Library District  
Board of Directors 

Regular Meeting Agenda  
Tuesday, Jan 10, 2023, 12:00 – 1:00 pm 

Riverside Meeting Room, Baker County Public Library 
2400 Resort St, Baker City  

Meeting simulcast via  Zoom     
Phone: +1 669 900 9128  Meeting ID: 818 2227 4917 Passcode:  997658 

             Kyra Rohner, President 

 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER        Rohner 
II. Consent agenda (ACTION)       Rohner 

a. Additions/deletions from the agenda 

b. Minutes of previous meeting 

III. Conflicts or potential conflicts of interest     Rohner 

IV. Open forum for general public, comments & communications  Rohner 
In the interests of time and to allow as many members of the public an opportunity 
to speak, the board asks guests to limit remarks to five (5) minutes if speaking on 
behalf of an individual, or ten (10) minutes if speaking on behalf of a group or 
organization. 

V. OLD BUSINESS 

a.  None 

VI. NEW BUSINESS 

a. FY2021-2022 Financial Audit Report    Rob Gaslin (CPA) 

b. Paid Family and Medical Leave Insurance (PFMLI)  Hawes/Stokes  

c. Rescheduling March 2023 Board Meeting (ACTION)    Stokes 

d. SDAO Annual Conference       Stokes 

VII. REPORTS 

a. Director        Stokes 

b. Finance        Hawes 

VIII. Next meeting: Feb 14, 2023       Rohner 

IX. ADJOURNMENT        Rohner 

 
    

The times of all agenda items except open forum are approximate and are subject to change. Other 
matters may be discussed as deemed appropriate by the Board. If necessary, Executive Session may be 
held in accordance with the following. Topics in bold and marked with an asterisk* are scheduled for the 
current meeting's executive session.  

ORS 192.660 (2) (d) Labor Negotiations   ORS 192.660 (2) (e, j) Property 

ORS 192.660 (2) (h) Legal Rights   ORS 192.660 (2) (a, b, i) Personnel 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81822274917?pwd=dHhkb292RmJGWk9rTGx1aWRTQVVPdz09


PS / 2023-01-08 

Page 2 of 4 

Library Board Meeting – Annotated Agenda 

Tuesday, Jan 10, 2023, 12:00 pm 

Notes prepared by Library Director Perry Stokes 
 

 

Annotated Agenda 

I. CALL TO ORDER         Rohner 
II. Consent agenda (ACTION)       Rohner 

a. Additions/deletions from the agenda 

b. Minutes of previous meeting 

Attachments: 

 II.b.i. Board meeting minutes, Dec 13 2022 

 
III. Conflicts or potential conflicts of interest     Rohner 

IV. Open forum for general public, comments & communications  Rohner 

V. OLD BUSINESS 

a. None 

VI. NEW BUSINESS 

a. FY2021-2022 Financial Audit Report    Rob Gaslin (CPA) 

The FY2021-2022 audit report will be presented at the meeting by Rob Gaslin of Gaslin Accounting, 
CPA firm of Baker City. A digital copy will be posted on the library website as soon as possible. 

b. Paid Family and Medical Leave Insurance (PFMLI)   Hawes   

In 2019, the Oregon Legislative Assembly passed the Paid Family Medical Leave Act, which 
established a paid family and medical leave insurance (PFMLI) program for Oregon employees. 
PFMLI provides an employee with compensated time off from work to care for and bond with a 
child following the child’s birth or adoption, to recover from a serious health condition or care 
for a family member’s serious health condition, or to take leave if the employee or the 
employee’s family member has experienced domestic violence, sexual assault, or harassment. 

 
PFMLI does not provide additional leave beyond what is currently provided by Oregon law, but 
it provides compensation during such leave. The PFMLI program will be funded by employee 
and employer contributions (PFMLI Fund) in the form of payroll deductions, which began on 
January 1, 2023. 
 

 For a helpful basic primer, see this “Fast Facts” webpage. 

 For more detailed description with Key Takeaways for Employers, see this Primer. 
 
The financial impact to the District is projected to be minimal. Christine will provide a detailed 
report.  

c. Rescheduling March 2023 Board Meeting (ACTION)    Stokes 

Due to a personal schedule conflict with the March 14 meeting, I propose to move the meeting 
date to the preceding Tuesday, March 7.    

 

see%20%20https:/www.thehartford.com/paid-family-medical-leave/or-pfml-fast-facts
https://ogletree.com/insights/a-primer-on-oregons-paid-family-and-medical-leave-insurance-program/


PS / 2023-01-08 

Page 3 of 4 

Library Board Meeting – Annotated Agenda 

Tuesday, Jan 10, 2023, 12:00 pm 

Notes prepared by Library Director Perry Stokes 
 

 

d. SDAO Annual Conference       Stokes 

The SDAO annual conference will be held February 9-12 in Sunriver, Oregon which is just south 
of Bend. They have a variety of sessions geared toward board members with many sessions 
available for virtual attendance. I’d like to discuss a board member possibly attending the 
conference this year. Visit the SDAO webpage for the 2023 Annual Conference Brochure. 
 

VII.  REPORTS 

a. Director        Stokes 

Facilities & vehicles 

 Roof replacement residual issues – Most of the major residual roof leaks have been 
resolved. A few persistent leaks are recurring in the Oregon Room and over the 
Riverside Door. Ed continues to work with the roofing contractor to correct the issues. 
Some will need to be managed until warm, dry weather will permit access to the 
problem source. 

 1 year anniversary of hydronic boiler – Last year at this time, due to sudden failure of 
the main boiler at the Baker branch, the board approved a resolution for an emergency 
boiler upgrade. Afterward it took several months to acquire, install and troubleshoot the 
new hydronic boiler array but it became fully functional in May-June at the end of the 
cold weather. This winter has been the first real test, and it has been operating reliably 
and well.  Ed has been improving efficiency by adding and replacing insulation around 
main heat pipes. 

Grants 

 SDAO Safety & Security Grant – Our 50/50 matching grant application for $5,000 to fund 
a proposed Air Quality Sensor project was unfortunately declined.  The letter stated the 
project was considered a “cost of doing business” instead of safety and security.  In 
response, I thanked the SDAO team for the opportunity and shared a recent story of a 
temporary emergency closure of the Boulder, Colorado public library after detection of 
methamphetamine contamination in the restroom air ducts and some seating areas. We 
regularly do suspect illegal drug use activity in our restrooms and study rooms, 
particularly vaping. The suite of sensors proposed by the project would monitor and 
track a variety of indoor air quality conditions including particulates, VOCs, CO2, and 
radon gas levels. 

Marketing / Publicity 

 Solar Charging Station – We’ve recently learned that charging functionality is getting 
disrupted due to overload usage (many items at once) tripping the breaker. Ed will be 
upgrading the circuit for greater capacity. 

Programs & services 

  EBSCO BookChat – I have upgraded our NoveList subscription to include a live chat 
Readers Advisory service. NoveList currently supplements our catalog records with 

https://goo.gl/maps/oPEoeMJqbVt5mhJt6
https://www.sdao.com/annual-conference
https://www.cnn.com/2023/01/01/us/boulder-colorado-meth-library-closure-trnd/index.html


PS / 2023-01-08 

Page 4 of 4 

Library Board Meeting – Annotated Agenda 

Tuesday, Jan 10, 2023, 12:00 pm 

Notes prepared by Library Director Perry Stokes 
 

 

helpful extra content such as series information, readalikes, similar authors, awards, and 
ratings. Now the supplemental content includes a link to “Get on-the-spot reading 
suggestions.” 

For a video intro, visit https://youtu.be/YxFdpIjGAKI  

Personnel 

 Extension of Retirement Date – Jim White has agreed to extend his employment 
through January 31 2023 in order to complete project objectives and training that were 
interrupted by medical leave. 

Technology 

 Security Camera System update – Cameras at all sites are now accessible via the UniFi 
Protect platform. Capacity has been expanded at the Baker branch so that we can begin 
migrating camera views covered by our original camera system to the new platform and 
retire that old system.  

 Public Workstation Technical Difficulties – the software that manages patron login and 
printing from public computers has developed a mystery failure issue. Troubleshooting 
that is Bryan’s main priority currently.  

 

b. Finance        Hawes 

Attachments: 

 VII.b.i. Financial Reports, Jan 2023 

 VII.b.ii. Approved bills list, Jan 2023 

 

VIII. Next meeting:  Feb 14, 2023       Rohner 

 Topics:  Update to Mileage and Per Diem Reimbursement rate   

Please let me know if you have any agenda items to request. 

 

IX. ADJOURNMENT         Rohner 

https://youtu.be/YxFdpIjGAKI


Baker County Library District 

Library Board 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
Dec 13, 2022 

 

Page 1 of 5 
 

 

Call to Order The meeting was held in the Riverside conference room at the Baker County 
Public Library, 2400 Resort Street, Baker City, Oregon, the administrative 
building for the District.  
 
Directors attending the meeting in person include Beth Bigelow; those 
attending online through Zoom are Kyra Rohner and Joan Spriggs.  Also 
attending in person were Perry Stokes, Director and Christine Hawes, Business 
Manager. One guest logged in online. 
 
Rohner called the meeting to order at 12:02pm. Three directors were present 
at the start of the meeting which constituted a quorum. 
 

Consent Agenda Rohner asked for any additions or deletions to the agenda or minutes from the 
previous meeting.  Stokes had one change, the audit delivery has been 
postponed to the January meeting.  There were no changes to the minutes.  
Bigelow made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented; Spriggs 
seconded; motion passed unanimously (3 yea) by those present. 
 

Conflicts of 
Interest 

Rohner asked if there were any conflicts or potential conflicts of interest to be 
declared.  There were none. 
 

Public Comment Rohner moved to public comments. The guest had no comments.   
 
Stokes had two public comments to share.  One was an informal complaint 
about a children’s board book titled A is for Activist. The complaint was 
received by written note submitted in the Comment Box.  Stokes is preparing a 
written response to the patron.  At this point, it is considered an informal 
challenge.  If the person seeks to have the book removed from the library, per 
policy they would need to submit a Request for Reconsideration Form and 
library would then convene a review committee to assess the suitability of the 
item in the collection and its shelving location.  Stokes reported that the book 
at issue was included on 100 Best Books of the Year list from NPR.   
 
The second public comment was about late fees. By patron request, staff had 
relayed a message that overdue fees are discouraging to library use. A parent 
said their family actively uses the library, but sometimes accrues large fines 
with many children’s titles out.  Staff did inform them about our Clean Slate fine 
forgiveness opportunity and made sure they knew about the Ready2Learn card 
for kids 5 and under which has the lowest fine level; both options were 
welcomed by the patron.  Stokes said we have previously surveyed library users 



Baker County Library District 

Library Board 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
Dec 13, 2022 

 

Page 2 of 5 
 

about the idea of the fines free policy, but he would like to conduct a larger 
survey in the community and hopefully get input from more infrequent users 
and non-users.  Bigelow asked about notification methods for due dates.  
Stokes said that our catalog system is set up to send automatic email notices 3 
days in advance of due dates, if the patron has agreed to have an email in our 
system. We also offer the LibraryElf service which provides a one-stop display 
for multiple family accounts and options for additional text notifications.  
Discussion on the account setup procedure, communication, and marketing 
about due date notice options.   
 

OLD BUSINESS: 
None 
 
 

None 
 

NEW BUSINESS: 
FY2021-22 
Financial Audit 
Delivery 

Audit report delivery is postponed to January board meeting as the auditor was 
unexpectedly not available for this meeting. 
 

Holiday Closure 
2023 
 

Stokes reviewed the 2023 Planned Closure list in the packets.  The planned 
closures include 12 closures corresponding to federal holidays plus 2 special 
closures; December 24 will fall on a Sunday in 2023 and is expected to not be 
busy, and the annual in-service training day is planned for August 17th.   This is 
an annual housekeeping item.  This does not include emergency closures.  
Discussion on inclement weather closures.  Bigelow made a motion to approve 
the 2023 Planned Closures; Spriggs seconded; motion passed unanimously. 
 

REPORTS: 
Director 

Rohner moved to the next agenda item. 
 
Stokes gave the administrative report: 
 
OLA – BCLD will be a participant in an Oregon Library Association program 
called Expedition Happy.  We will be a destination or “stop” on a virtual race 
event. This program is designed to encourage people to visit libraries on their 
travels and raise funds for the OLA Public Library Division through race 
registration fees. 
 
Stokes reported that last week the Crook County Library board considered a 
proposal to segregate and label LGBTQ+ items as a special collection. CCL is a 
member of Libraries of Eastern Oregon. Representatives from the state library, 
OLA Intellectual Freedom Committee (OLA IFC) and Deschutes Library 



Baker County Library District 

Library Board 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
Dec 13, 2022 

 

Page 3 of 5 
 

recommended against segregation for Constitutional civil liberty reasons 
including privacy, fairness, and intellectual freedom. Oregon law also prohibits 
discrimination in public accommodation (ORS 659A.403) based on protected 
classes. Stokes said that as member of the IFC, he helped craft the statement 
read at the meeting. Segregating materials of a certain viewpoint to satisfy the 
objections of some, he argued, would basically declare the segregated content 
as “unorthodox” speech in the view of the government and therefore would 
likely be unconstitutional based on previous court rulings. By imposing a highly 
visible public disclosure of interest in a particular content -- disclosure which 
may increase the risk of harassment and violence to the user --  it could be 
considered a barrier to access by creating a “chilling effect.” He applauded IFC 
Chair Emily O’Neal for her excellent and intensive work on the matter. The issue 
received significant media attention and public testimony at the meeting lasted 
a couple of hours. Ultimately, the proposal was defeated by a board vote of 4-1.   
 
Friends - Nothing to report. 
 
Marketing – Recent marketing includes a quarter page ad in the 2022 Baker 
County Living Guide, and inclusion in a community cartoon map. The library has 
a supply of free cartoon maps to share while supplies last.  
 
Personnel: New personnel include Bryan Ames, promoted to the IT Systems 
Administrator position, Ekaterina Minnigalieva has joined the team as Technical 
Services Assistant; Melissa Garcia-Gonzalez will be trained as a new Library 
Assistant substitute in the Baker branch.  In Richland, longtime branch lead Reb 
Wilson has retired.  Sydney Saunders was selected to be the new lead. 
 
Facilities: Installation of expanded YA shelving is in progress.  This capital 
investment of approximately $6,800 was paid out of General Fund and will 
create room for more books in the young adult collection for fiction, graphic 
novels, and manga. It will also free space to display a new collection of board 
games.  
 
The solar charging station has been installed.  Stokes said observed use so far is 
low due with winter weather, but we anticipate it will be popular from spring 
through fall. 
 
Technology:  Before retirement, Jim is working with Bryan to update our 
servers and the security camera system.  The District’s staff e-mail platform has 
been updated to Outlook 365 which occurred on November 19.  There have 
been some technical difficulties reported which Bryan is troubleshooting.    
 
Policy:  Copies of the Code of Conduct policy can now be found affixed to 
windows at the main Baker exterior entrances and in wall-mounted signage at 



Baker County Library District 

Library Board 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
Dec 13, 2022 

 

Page 4 of 5 
 

several strategic points in the library for public information and quick staff 
reference.   
 

Finance Report Hawes shared Financial Reports in print and electronic formats.    
 
The General Fund received tax turnovers on December 8 of $257,583 plus a 
total of $983,709 in 3 turnovers in November.  The tax revenues are at 90% 
collected or $1,281,225 to-date.  Other revenues received include ECF funds of 
$1,350 (3 months of service for Verizon hotspots) and E-Rate refunds of $2,364 
for the first 4 months of the fiscal year (July-Oct) Internet services.  We also 
received another $1,000 incentive check from Energy Trust of Oregon (ETO) 
that will make a total of $4,000 received this fiscal year, thanks to Ed 
Adamson’s work with that program.  Personnel Services is on track with the 
budget.  In Materials & Services, two checks have been written to Ingram for 
monthly book orders; 12/01 for $4,665.26 for the November 1 statement 
received late, and today $3,584.23 for the December 1 statement; the vendor is 
now current.  Noteworthy vendor checks include Grainger $378.58 for 
replacement ceiling tiles, Alpine Alarm $689 for annual alarm testing at 3 
branch locations, DocuLynx $1,369.50 for the annual maintenance of the 
ScanPro microfilm reader, Enfold $472 for website hosting (paid 12/01), Kajeet 
$3,937.83 to renew hotspot services, Landmark $400 for labor to help install 
the solar panel and shelving assembly, and Whelan Electric $140 for tutor room 
outlet repair. 
 
Bills recently paid online include Idaho Power for electricity at two branch 
locations $131.75, OTEC for electricity at two locations $100 for Haines and 
$1186.14 for Baker libraries.  CenturyTel was paid online for Huntington 
telephone $81.60, Huntington Internet $449.10 and Sumpter library combined 
telephone and Internet of $138.01.  Verizon $861.35 was paid for 2 
management phones, bookmobile hotspot, and hotspot services for 18 patron 
units.  Those receipts are available to review with one of the check packets 
handed out.  The bills paid online are primarily utilities and payroll related 
vendors. 
 
In addition, Cascade Natural Gas was also paid online $1,530.88.   This is the 
vendor we pay for the Baker Library heating fuel.  The amount due was 
considerably larger than the prior month and the same bill a year ago.  
Investigating there was found to be two causes, we had increased usage from a 
year ago of 392 therms (24% increase), and the price has significantly increased 
from $.464523 per therm a year ago to $0.70115 per therm this month (a 
50.1% increase of $0.23663 per therm).  We will definitely be over budget on 
this line. A new fiscal year projection will be provided for approval of a 
supplemental budget.   



Baker County Library District 

Library Board 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
Dec 13, 2022 

 

Page 5 of 5 
 

 
The Other Funds received book sale revenues of $110.87 and wrote one last 
minute check to VISA for $83.82 to pay the November and December shipping 
costs.     
 
The Capital Investment Fund - no activity to report.  The fund cash balance 
remains at $110,744. 
 
The Sage Fund has received $227,150 in membership fees with the balance due 
of $21,234 in Accounts Receivable.  There is one check written to the Hermiston 
Public Library of $4,970.12 to refund a portion of their membership due to 
revisions of their fee responsibilities with Umatilla County Special Library 
District (UCSLD).  Hermiston Library had paid the amount due in full in October 
but payment by UCSLD now covers the unincorporated region outside the City 
boundary.  Sage also wrote two checks to EOU including $1,500 for annual lease 
plus $195 for tech support.  It also wrote two checks to VISA, the December 
amount due of $595.27 plus the November statement due of $807.38 
(previously thought to have been paid online but didn’t go through).  The VISA 
payment includes Marchive $322.32 for record maintenance and GoToMeeting 
$234 for online meeting platform subscription.  Sage also wrote a few small 
checks for monthly courier services. 
 
The Approved Bills Lists (ABL) are printouts of checking account activities for all 
three funds since the last meeting date for review. The checks were signed by 
the board members present at the meeting who also initial the lists. 
 
There were no further questions. 
 

Next Meeting The next regular board meeting will be January 10, 2023 at 12:00 pm (Noon) 
with the Audit delivery as primary agenda item. 
 

Adjourn The meeting was adjourned at 12:40 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Perry Stokes 
Secretary to the Board 
PS/ch 

 



Audit Report or Review Report Submission
Are you submitting a(an):
Audit Report

 

Municipal corporation
Baker Co Library District

Municipal customer number
001608MUNI

Fiscal year end 
date
6/30/2022

Your name
Robert Gaslin

Your email
robert.gaslin@gmail.com

Additional email to receive copy of this 
submission
chawes@bakerlib.org

Additional email to receive copy of this 
submission
director@bakerlib.org

Attach Audit Report or Review Report here
Baker County Library District June 30, 2022.pdf

BCLD Internal Control Letter.pdf

 

Did the auditor communicate deficiencies?
Yes

Would you like to submit your plan of action 
now?
No

A Plan of Action as adopted by the governing body 
must be filed within 30 days of your report 
submission. You can email to 
municipalfilings.sos@sos.oregon.gov or mail to: 

Audits Division
255 Capitol St. NE
Salem OR 97310

You may proceed by clicking Submit below to submit 
your report without the Plan of Action at this time.

Comments or additional information
 

mailto:municipalfilings.sos@sos.oregon.gov



































	2023-01-10_Agenda info
	2022-12-13_minutes_DRAFT_ps



